
Village of Liverpool Planning Board 
Monday December 28, 2015 

7:00 PM 
 

Present: Joseph Ostuni, Chairman   Michael LaMontagne 
John Eallonardo    James Taft 
Tom Tartaglia    John Langey, Attorney 

  William Reagan-Codes Officer  Sandra Callahan, Secretary 
  Gregg Sgromo, Village Engineer  
 
Call to Order 
Chairman Ostuni called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM and led all present in the Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Mr. Tartaglia moved and Mr. Taft seconded the motion to adopt the minutes from October 26, 2015. 
Motion carried. 
 
Old Business – 514 Oswego Street 
On the application of Sohyla Ziaie for a revised site plan to convert a single business to two businesses 
within the existing building and renovate the second floor to one apartment. 
 
Chairman Ostuni asked the applicant to give an update and said that the building looks great so far. 
 
Ms. Ziaie said the downstairs would have a hair salon on the left side of the building and the teahouse 
would be on the right side. Upstairs would be a “day spa” with a sauna and organic spray tanning, and 
no longer an apartment. The proposed tenants currently have a spray tanning business on Old Liverpool 
Road. 
 
The hair salon and teahouse would be 1 business with 2 employees. The spa would have 2 employees. 
 
Chairman Ostuni said the floor plan is marked for restrooms and the plan shows a patio with shrubbery 
and a 5’ wide grass space between the sidewalk and building. He would like the applicant to re-measure 
the patio and paver area and update the plan. 
 
Ms. Ziaie said she would use the existing 7’ x 6’ ground sign but would repaint it and make it look nicer. 
 
There are 8 parking spots on site and 10 available on the street and it is sufficient for what she has 
planned. 
 
Chairman Ostuni asked the board to present any questions they had. 
 
Mr. Taft asked about drainage, Mr. Ostuni said there is green space on the Vine St. side and the sides of 
the building and drainage is not an issue. 
 
Mr. LaMontagne said he thinks the building looks good. He asked about ADA accessibility. Ms. Ziaie said 
there is a bathroom on the 1st floor and one in the basement. There is a ramp on the back of the building 
through an existing door out to the patio. 
 



Mr. LaMontagne also asked about signage. Ms. Ziaie said she would use the existing sign for all 
businesses. Mr. Reagan said that the sign was previously approved under the old sign code and it is the 
Board’s discretion if a new sign would need to be in compliance with the current code. 
 
Mr. Tartaglia asked if the patio will be covered. Ms. Ziaie said no, there is a big tree on the side that 
provides shade. He asked if it would now be all commercial with no residential, Ms. Ziaie said yes.  Mr. 
Tartaglia also asked about snow storage/removal. Ms. Ziaie said all snow would go in the corner parking 
space as it has in the past with the former tenants. 
 
Mr. Reagan asked how many employees and customers would be there at any given time. Ms. Ziaie said 
there would be a total of 4 employees and customers would be by appointment so the parking shouldn’t 
be an issue. 
 
The maximum parking requirement, if all businesses were filled to capacity, would be 19, consisting of 4 
chairs in salon, 3 customers in sauna, 4 employees and 8 customers in teahouse. It was asked if they 
could share space with the church across the street and Attorney Langey said they would need a multi-
year lease allowing permission to share the parking lot. 
 
Mr. Reagan said there is plenty of on-street parking. 
 
Mr. Eallonardo asked if there would be delivery of supplies. Ms. Ziaie said no, everything would come via 
FedEx; there wouldn’t be restaurant type deliveries. He asked if anything would be on the porch. Ms. 
Ziaie said there may be a table and chairs but no business would be there. 
 
Attorney Langey doesn’t think County Planning will have any issues with the changes. Mr. Reagan said 
there would be no new lighting outside. Ms. Ziaie said she will use the existing sign posts and will just 
make the sign more decorative and use the current ground light that is in place. 
 
Chairman Ostuni said the patio measurements are off scale and need to be adjusted on the site plan. 
Chairman Ostuni asked Ms. Ziaie to return to the next meeting with drawings of the proposed sign and 
patio.   
 
Chairman Langey stated that the board can’t give partial approval for a project. A quick poll of the Board 
was taken relative to parking; the Board agreed unanimously that there was enough parking to move 
forward with the proposed businesses. 
 
The Board all agreed they are really pleased with what the applicant has done with the building. The 
public hearing remains open. 
 
Meyer Manor Apartments – update 
 
Chairman Ostuni said the Planning Board recommended to the Village Board to make the zone change 
from R-1 to R-3 for the parcel.  County Planning referral was received and they need more information 
before they can fully make a recommendation. They had questions about how it will be used relative to 
the Donald Drive area. They also have questions about traffic, drainage, and sanitary sewer. 
 



Chairman Ostuni said that we need better detail from the applicant and a more detailed plan. He stated 
that we received a letter from the Town of Salina attorney listing several issues that needed to be 
addressed. 
 
Steve Calocerinos – Engineer for the project was present to update the Board. 
 
Mr. Calocerinos stated that no wetlands reports have been completed yet. He also said that they want 
to provide access from Tulip Street. 
 
Chairman Ostuni asked to Board to present any questions they had to Mr. Calocerinos. 
 
Chairman Ostuni stated that County Planning is concerned if there is only 1 point of access and it was 
closed off due to accident, etc., how emergency vehicles would get in.  Mr. Calocerinos said they could 
use a gate/keypad entrance from Donald Drive side for emergencies. The Fire Code is based on the 
height of the buildings and closeness to each other and a second access point may not be necessary. 
 
Chairman Ostuni asked how close the Board was to receiving a more detailed site plan. 
 
Mr. Calocerinos said one hold up is waiting for the zone change to be put in place. The County and Town 
want more commitment to the plan and project before approving zone change.  He stated this was 
originally submitted just for the zone change and the comments from the County state no impact on just 
the zone change, their comments are for the proposed project. 
 
Chairman Ostuni stated that the Village Board is the lead agency for SEQR purposes for the zone change. 
Attorney Langey said the Planning Board needs more specific information to address the project. The 
Town of Salina is an involved agency and will be providing questions and information relating to the 
sewer tie-in. 
 
Mr. Calocerinos said that what has been submitted to date is just a sketch plan and there is no new site 
plan yet. He is waiting for a wetlands report before doing a site plan. The Thruway Authority will be 
involved regarding stormwater drainage. 
 
Chairman Ostuni stated that most issues at Donald Drive are already there and not due to the proposed 
project. 
 
Mr. Calocerinos said that most sewer calls are for problems from the lateral to the house not the sewer 
main. 
 
Mr. Tartaglia is concerned about access if there was an accident blocking the entry he said people would 
be land locked. Mr. Calocerinos again stated they would possibly have a gated/secure second access 
point. 
 
Mr. LaMontagne and Mr. Taft had no questions. 
 
Attorney Langey said that the Village Board will have to adopt a positive or negative declaration for the 
zone change and we have to address all the issues in order to do the SEQR properly.  Mr. Calocerinos 
said the developer would do more if he knew the zone change would take place.  He asked if the 



developer can work with the Town to address some of the issues. Mr. Calocerinos said he will work with 
the town engineer Clough Harbour.  
 
Mr. Langey said the town wants the following items addressed; 

• Height of buildings -  possibly propose 2 stories instead of 3 
• Traffic study 
• Drainage impact, public water/pressure 
• Sewers 
• Lighting 

 
Mr. Langey also stated we would probably need to complete a long EAF. If it triggers a Type 1, we would 
have to amend. 
 
Mr. Calocerinos said a traffic study couldn’t be completed for approximately 2 weeks due to the holidays 
because there was no school bus traffic at this time. The Wetlands report wouldn’t be completed for 3 
weeks.  It will likely be February or March before he will submit a new site plan. 
 
He will keep the board updated at the next meeting. 
 
New Business 
 
Initial review of the application of Seneca Federal Savings & Loan Association (proposed buyer EDW 
Realty, LLC) for a site plan review and sub-division for a property located at 105-113 Second St. 
designated as tax map 04.-02-03, 04.-02-04 and 04.-02-05 for a proposed project to build a Dunkin’ 
Donuts restaurant 
 
Bob Abbott – Architect for proposed project was present to address the Board 
 
Mr. Abbott stated the plan is to purchase the buildings and lots and raze them to build the restaurant on 
all 3 lots, the Venesky Appliance building and garage and the old bank building. 
 
Mr. Abbott explained the traffic pattern per the submitted site plan and said the heaviest traffic would 
be between 7-9 a.m. 
 
DOT requests curb cuts as far away as possible from the intersection to prevent traffic from backing up. 
 
Mr. Abbott stated they will have a patio with outdoor tables and wrought iron fencing to mimic the 
village parks. 
 
The building would have 40” of brick then clapboard and awnings per the submitted drawings. 
 
Parking - He said the plan shows 19 parking spots on site and based on the proposed design only 16 are 
required. The dumpsters would be located in the corner by the American Legion building and would be 
covered. There would be green space for snow storage on both sides of the parking lot. 
 
Drive Thru - Mr. Abbott said the drive-thru would be on the side so queuing of cars would go around 3 
sides of the building and wouldn’t go into the street. 
 



Signage – They would like to keep the old bank sign with the clock and just change the graphics. 
 
Mr. Taft stated he is concerned about the drive thru. 
 
Attorney Langey said we would need an amendment to the current zoning law to allow for a drive thru 
or request a use variance. He also stated the amendment would be to the section of the code not just 
for this proposed project. Currently in a B2 zone a bank can have a drive thru by special permit. 
 
Chairman Ostuni asked the board for any questions. 
 
Mr. LaMontagne said the signage is too big as proposed. Our goal is to have new businesses comply with 
the current code. He is also concerned about traffic; do we need to do a traffic study? He also asked how 
far off the road is the drive thru? What about pedestrians crossing? He also thinks the building should 
have more brick. 
 
Mr. Abbott said the menu board is 5 cars back from the drive thru. The current plan would allow 12-15 
cars to be queued before it would reach the street. 
 
Mr. Tartaglia is also concerned about traffic at peak times. He also suggested looking at different design 
ideas to fit into the village look. 
 
Mr. Eallonardo is concerned about the signage and said they need to keep it “charming.” 
 
Chairman Ostuni said the clock sign is too big, we would need a compromise. 
 
Attorney Langey said we will need to modify the code via local law to allow for a drive thru. He 
suggested Mr. Abbott send a letter to the Village Board requesting the code change for B2 zoned 
properties. 
 
Village Engineer Gregg Sgromo provided the Board with a letter addressing his initial concerns. 
 
Attorney Langey said a lot line adjustment/sub-division would be needed to take 3 lots to 1. 
 
Mr. Abbott will send a letter to the Village Board for the change to the code and will return for the next 
Planning Board meeting. 
 
There being no other business, Chairman Ostuni asked for a motion to adjourn. Motion made by Mr. 
LaMontagne and seconded by Mr. Tartaglia to adjourn. Motion carried, meeting adjourned at 9:00 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Sandra J. Callahan 
Planning Board Secretary 


